
 
 

 

OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR REPORT NOTE: 
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Opinions 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Woodville, as 
of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town of Woodville's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Woodville, as of September 30, 2021, and 
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Woodville, and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe 
that tl1e audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Woodville's ability 
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly tl1ereafter. 

Members: American Institute of CPAs, Mississippi Society of CPAs, Louisiana Society of CPAs 



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Om objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from matei'ial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
Government Auditing' Stat,dards therefore is not a guarantee that an a_udit conducted in accordance· with 
generally' accepted auditing standards will always detect a material miss'tatement when it exists. The risk 
of not detecting a: material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud" may" i'nvOlve cOllusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 1nisrepresentations, or the override of 
internal conh·ol. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individtfaHy or in the aggregate, they wotild influence the judgment made by a reaso~abie user based on 
the'fina11ci'al statements. · · · 

' 

In p~rforming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

·• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and as~ess the _risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or errnr, and design and perform· audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amo'unts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
.procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
,opinion on the effectiveness of the·Town of Woodville's internal controL Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of a.ccounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
ac~ounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
·firiancia_l statements. 

• Condude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
thatrnise substantial doubt about the Town of Woodville's ability to continue as a going concern 

· · · for a reasonable period of time. 
. ' ' ' . . 

We are' required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the vla1i11ed sc.ope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the Schedule of the Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of Contributions, on pages 4-9 and pages 38-40, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain ·limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any. assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Oth~r Supplemenla~y Infor;nation 

Our ;udit "';as c.0!1ducted for the purpose of forming opinions Oil the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town of Woodville's basic financial statements. The accompanying Other Supplementary 
Information, as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used lo prepare the 
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used lo prepare the 
basic financial statements or lo the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Natchez, Mississippi 
January 31, 2023 
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· TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
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The:ma:nhge1Yienl of TOi,vn· Of \N oodvi-l'le, Mississip.pi (fhe: To.wrl) Offers i"ea:ders of.the Town's financial statements -thiS 
i1arfattv·e· overview and:anal)'siS of the· fiflanciaJ· activities· o"f"the Tbwn for the fiscal"year ended· September 30, 2021: 
This Management's Discussion· and Analysis is designed to provide an objective ahalysis: of'the Town's financial 
activities ba·si:;?d 'Ori currently known facts, decisions, and conditions. It is intended to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the Town's finances. It is also intended to provide readers with an analysis of the Town's short-term and 
long-term activities' based on ihformatfon presented in the financial report and fiscal policies that have been adopted 
bY the Town. Specifically, this section is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, 
i:/rovide ·an· Overview Of the Tow:h' s financial· activity, identify changes in ·the ToWn' S-financial position {its ·ability-tO 
address the next and subsequent year challenges), identify any material deviations from the financial pla11 
(thie-approved budget), and identify individual fund·issue:S·or concerns. 

The Town presents its financial statements under the reporting model required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standatds Board · (G/1SB) : Statetnent 34 · and the subsequent · amendments isst!ed with GASB Statement 63. 
'v\Te encourage :readers to c0l1sider the information .presented here in conjunction with additional infol'inatiori 
presented throughout this-report. 

Overview of the Pinancial Statements 

this Section hl intended ·to serve as an introduction lo the Town'·s fin·ancial" statements. The Town's ·basit:financia: 
Statements :cOJis-ist-of the gov·ernment:.wide financial statenwnts, fund firiancial statements~ and notes tci the' fintlncial 
statements. This-report also contains supplementary information, and other information, which is in addition to the 
basic financial statements. 

GOvernmentM V-✓ ide Financial Statements 

Govel'im1ent'wide financial ·statements are designed by GASB Statement 34 and the subsequent a1heridments issued 
with GASB Statement-63 to provide the readers with a concise "entity-wide" Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Activities, which seek to give the user of the financial state1nents a broad overview of the Town's financial position 
and results of operations in a manner similar to private sector businesses. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. The difference between the 
bvo .is reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial condition of the Town is ilnproving or weakening. · 

The Staternent of Activities presents information which shows how the government's net position changed during 
this fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the 
timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for son1e items that will 
only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes). 

Each of these reports is broken down between governmental activities and business-type activities. Governmental 
activities normally are those activities that are supported by taxes, licenses, permits, fines, and intergovernmental 
revenues; for example, the police and fire departments. Business-type activities are functions that are intended to 
support their costs through charges for services or fees; such as the water, sewer, gas, and Management and Training 
Corporation (MTC) departments. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may, over time, serve as a useful 
Town's assets exceeded its liabilities by $3,832,682 
Of this total net position amount, a $1,684,295 deficit is 
governmental activities and $4,159,071 from business-type activities. 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

indicator of a government's financial condition. At 
(net position); this represents an increase 
in · unrestricted net position. The Town's net 

The following is a condensed statement of the Town of Woodville's net position as of September 30, 2021 and 2020: 

Assets 
Current and other assets 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities 
Other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted for: 
Capital projects 
Debt service and other 

Unrestricted 
Total net position 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Governmental Activities 
2021 2020 

380,401 
1,840,007 
2,220,408 

148,872 

229,062 
2,064,215 
2,293,277 

402,392 

1,381,880 

(1,708,269) 
(326,389) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

220,168 
1,785,364 
2,005,532 

131,040 

326,821 
2,724,212 
3,051,033 

1,263,135 

(2,177,596) 
(914,461) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Business-T.re_e Activities 
2021 2020 

1,266,702 
5,317,289 
6,583,991 

368,848 
2,056,072 
2,424,920 

3,186,397 

503,080 
445,620 

23,974 
4,159,071 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,071,760 
5,450,371 
6,522,131 

356,674 
2,154,103 
2,510,777 

3,219,616 

531,547 
=,354 
37,837 

4,011,354 

the close of the most recent fiscal year, the 
of $735,789 from the prior year. 

position is comprised . of $326,389 from 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Totals 
2021 

1,647,103 
7,157,296 
8,804,399 

148,872 

597,910 
4,120,287 
4,718,197 

402,392 

4,568,277 

503,080 
445,620 

(1,684,295) 
3,832,682 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2020 

1,291,928 
7,235,735 
8,527,663 

131,040 

683,495 
4,878,315 
5,561,810 

4,482,751 

531,547 
=,354 

(2,139,759) 
3,096,893 

By far, the largest portion of the Town's net position ($4,568,277or 119%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment, 
Town infrastructure, etc.) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town's capital assets are reported net of related debt, it .should be noted 
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The remaining balance is made up of a deficit in unrestricted net position of $1,684,295, and restricted net position of $948,700, which are restricted for 
debt service and construction projects. 

TI1e Town has total outstanding debt of $2,640,444, whid1 was used to finance some of the $7,157,296 in capital assets. Total liabilities and deferred inflc)\Vs of $5,120,589 
are equal to 134% of the total net position, primarily because of the GASS Statement 68 implementation. 

"' 



Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

TI1e Town's governmental activities increased net position by $559,648. This increase is mainly due to an decrease in expenditures to the general fund. 

The following·is a summary of the Town's statements of activities for the years ended September-30, 2021 and 2020: 

Revenues 
Program revenues 
General revenues and transfers 

Total revenues and 
transfers 

Expenses 
General government 
Public safety 
Streets 
Sanitation 
Cemetery 
Combined utility 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net position 

Net position, beginning 

Prior period adjustment 

Net position, ending 

Governmental Activities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Governmental Activities 
2021 2020 

153,587 $ 
1,326,335 

136,616 
981,747 

1,479,922 $ 1,118,363 

118,177 $ 

379,423 
232,927 
124,017 
41,634 

125,049 
556,635 
253,767 
103,887 

47,809 

24,096 27,772 
920,274 $ 1,114,919 

559,648 $ 3,444 

(914,461) $ (917,905) 

28,424 

(326,389) $ (914,461) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Business-Tre_e Activities 
2021 2020 

1,437,621 $ 
(105,174) 

1,654,944 
(121,489) 

1,332,447 $ 1,533,455 

$ 

1,184,730 1,088,261 

1,184,730 $ 1,088,261 

147,717 $ 445,194 

4,011,354 $ 

4,159,071 $ 

3,531,865 

34,295 

4,011,354 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Totals 
2021 

1,591,208 
1,221,161 

2,812,369 

118,177 
379,423 
232,927 
124,017 

41,634 
1,184,730 

24,096 
2,105,004 

707,365 

3,096,893 

28,424 

3,832,682 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2020 

1,791,560 
860,258 

2,651,818 

125,049 
556,635 
253,767 
103,887 
47,809 

1,088,261 
27,772 

2,203,180 

448,638 

2,613,960 

34,295 

3,096,893 

The governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, streets, sanitation, cemetery, housing, and payment of interest on 
long-term debt. In that revenues normally associated with municipal operations (e.g., sales tax, property tax, franchise fees, license. fees, permits, fines, and 
operating grants) iire insufficient for the funding of these activities, the- Town relies on transfers of excess revenue from its enterprise fund to partially cover 
the cost of all governmental activities. 

m 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

GoVernment-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

Business-Type Activities 

7 

The business-type activities of the Town are those that charge a fee to customers for the services provided. The Town has one 
business-type activity, which is accounted for in the enterprise fund. The Town uses the enterprise fund to account for the 
revenues and expenses related to the provision of water, sewer, gas, and MTC services. 

The follO\-\dng is a summary of the utility operating results of the business-type activities of the Town. Capital grants1 general 
revenues, and transfers have not been included. 

Operating Revenues 

Water Sewer Gas MTC Total 

Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2020 $ 418,256 $ 245,503 $ 481,554 $ 93,318 $ 1,238,631 
Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2021 487,908 246,515 556,679 139,798 1,430,900 
Increase (decrease) from prior year $ 69,652 $ 1,012 $ 75,125 $ 46,480 $ 192,269 

Operating Expenses 

Water Sewer Gas MTC Total 

Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2020 $ 320,901 $ 230,685 $ 467,640 $ 67,860 $ 1,087,086 
Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2021 303,891 235,756 524,429 67156 1,131,232 
Increase (decrease) from prior year $ (17,010) $ 5,071 $ 56,789 $ (704) $ 44,146 

Net Income (Loss) From Operations 

Water Sewer Gas MTC Total 

Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2020 $ 97,355 $ 14,818 $ 13,914 $ 25,458 $ 151,545 
Fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2021 184,017 10,759 32,250 72,642 299,668 
Increase (decrease) from prior year $ 86,662 $ (4,059) $ 18,336 $ 47,184 $ 148,123 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Fund Financial Statements - Governmental Funds 

8 

The fund fo1ai\cial statements provide more detailed information about the Town's most significant funds-not 
the Towri as· a whole. Fu·nds are accounting devices that the Town uses to keep· track of specific sources 6f 
fui\ding and spending for a particular purp·ose. · · · · 

The Tciwri curreritly maintains four indivicltial governmental fund types. These fund types are the General 
Fund, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Agency Fund. Information is presented separately in the 
Goveriimerital 'Funds Balance· Sheet (Statement C) and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, 
Ex1:>ehclih.ires, a11d Changes in Fund Balances (Statement E) for the General Fund. The General Fund is 
considered to be a major fund. 

The Town adopts an annual budget for the General Fund. A statement of revenues, expenclih.ires, and changes 
in fund ·balance fol' the General Fund is presented in the Required Supplementary Information (Part II), which 
compares achrnl revenues and expenclih.ires to the original budget and amended budget figures. 

Financial Analysis of Town of Woodville, Mississippi's Governmental Funds 

The Town's governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of $240,552,\vhich is an increase of $201,086. 
Ttils increase was -primarily clue to·an increase in transfers in from the proprietary fund. Transfers in amounted 
to $226,242 and $165,000 as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. $87,785 of the f~ncl balance was 
assi1sned. The remaining fund surplus of $152,767 was unassig11ecl at September 30, 2021. 

Ftirid Financial Statements - Proprietary Funds 

The Town maintains one proprietary fund. Proprietary funds are used to report the same functions as business­
type 'activities: The Town uses an enterprise fund (the firsftype of proprietary fund) to account for its combined 
water, sewer, gas, and MTC operations. This enterprise fund reports the same functions presented as business­
type activities· in the government-wide financial statements. 

Financial Analysis of Town of Woodville, Mississippi's Proprietary Fund 

The. Town's Enterprise Fund shows an increase in net position of $147,717, which represents less than 5% 
increase from fiscal year 2020. This is primarily due to a substantial amount of grants received in the current 
year. The sewer, prison, water, and sewer deparhnents showed income in the current year. The unrestricted 
fund .balance .. show_ecl .a balance of$2~,974; at September 3.0, 2021.. $948,7.00 was restricted for debt s.ervi,ce, and 
,onstructi01; projects. The remaining amount represents th,e To':"n' s investment. in its utility systems, and 
equipment. 

In that financial statements of the Enterprise Fund are presented on the same basis of accounting as in both the 
government-wide financial statements and the incliviclual fund statements, all comments and analysis made 
under business-type activities applyto this fund: 

Fund Financial Statements - General Fund Budgetary Highlights ' . . ., .. - . . 

There were no major differences between the original budget and the final budget: - ' . . . ' ', 
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Fund Financial Statements - General Fund Budgetary Highlights (continued) 
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Revenues were sufficiently budgeted by $123,500 or 9.9%. Actual expenditures showed a positive variance of 
$47,023 or 3.8% · against budgeted expenditure amounts. The final budget and the actual results show a positive 
variance of $102,163. 

Government-Wide - Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

The total investment in net capital assets as of September 30, 2021, is $7,157,296. 

New major capital assets·purchased, constructed, or put in service in fiscal year 2021 are: 
• • •• ·• • r • 

1. $47;989,_sti'eet in1proveni.ents. 

2. $24,867, various police equipment. 

3. $50,388, two police vehicles. 

Current Financial Factors 

Revenues are expected to remain level, while expenditures are expected to rise. 

The ability of utility operations to continue to supplement the ever-increasing costs of general operations of the 
Town is doubtful. 

Requests for I11for111ntio11 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances for all with an interest in 
the government's operations. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests 
for additional information should be addressed to De Laine Adams, Town Clerk, Post Office Box 605, Woodville, 
Mississippi 39669. 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Governmental 
Activities 

ASSETS 
Cash arid cash equivalents - unresh"icted $ 210,593 
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles 47,577 
Internal balances 34,446 

. Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 87,785 
Ca pita! assets, net 1,840,007 

Total assets $ 2,220,408 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES - PENSIONS $ 148,872 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts, salaries, and other payables $ 139,849 
Payable from resh"icted assets 
Bonds and notes payable, due within one year 64,101 
Compensated absences 25,112 
Internal balances 
Bonds and notes payable 394,026 
Net pension liability 1,670,189 

Total liabilities $ 2,293,277 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - PENSIONS $ 402,392 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,381,880 
Resh"icted for: 
Capital projects $ 
Debt service 
Operations and maintainance 

Total restricted net position 

U nresh"icted $ (1,708,269) 

Total net position $ (326,389) 

Business-
Type 

Activities 

$ 
318,002 

948,700 
5,317,289 

$ 6,583,991 

$ 

$ 116,850 
116,419 

74,820 
26,313 
34,446 

2,056,072 

$ 2,424,920 

$ 

$ 3,186,397 

$ 503,080 
130,507 
315,113 

$ 948,700 

$ 23,974 

$ 4,159,071 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 210,593 
365,579 

34,446 
1,036,485 
7,157,296 

$ 8,804,399 

$ 148,872 

$ 256,699 
116,419 
138,921 

51,425 
34,44!5 

2,450,098 
1,670,189 

$ 4,718,197 

$ 402,392 

$ 4,568,277 

$ 503,080 
130,507 
315,113 

$ 948,700 

$ (1,684,295) 

$ 3,832,682 



GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVIDES 
General government 

Public safety 
Streets 
Sanitation 

Cemetery 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total gove.mmental activities 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
Water 
Sewer 

Gas 

MTC 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total business-type 

activities 

Total 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges Grants and Grants and Net 
for Contri- Contri- (Expenses)/ 

~enses Services butions butions Revenues 

$ 118,177 $ $ $ $ (118,177) 
379,423 44,610 (334,813) 
232,927 (232,927) 
124,017 108,977 (15,040) 

41,634 (41,634) 
24,096 (24,096) 

$ 920,274 $ 153,587 $ $ $ (766,687) 

$ 303,891 $ 487,908 $ $ $ 184,017 
235,756 246,515 6,721 17,480 
524,429 556,679 32,250 

67,156 139,798 72,642 
53,498 (53,498) 

s 1,184,730 $ 1,430,900 $ $ 6,721 $ 252,891 

$ 2,105,004 $ 1,584,487 $ $ 6,721 $ (513,796) 

General revenues: 
Ad valorern and franchise taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental revenues 

Investment earnings 
Other general revenues 

Transfers 
Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 
Net position - beginning 
Prior period adjustment 

Net position - ending 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

STATEMENTB 

Net (Expenses), 
Revenues, and Changes 

Govern- Business-
mental Type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ (118,177) $ $ (118,177) 
(334,813) (334,813) 
(232,927) (232,927) 
(15,040) (15,040) 
(41,634) (41,634) 
(24,096) (24,096) 

$ (766,687) $ $ (766,687) 

$ $ 184,017 $ 184,017 
17,480 17,480 
32,250 32,250 
72,642 72,642 

(53,498) (53,498) 

$ s 252,891 $ 252,891 

s (766,687) $ 252,891 $ (513,796) 

$ 361,359 $ $ 361,359 
1,757 1,757 

596,672 596,672 
242 1,486 1,728 

140,063 119,582 259,645 
226,242 (226,242) 

$ 1,326,335 $ (105,174) $ 1,221,161 

$ 559,648 $ 147,717 $ 707,365 
(914,461) 4,011,354 3,096,893 

28,424 28,424 

s (326,389) $ 4,159,071 $ 3,832,682 

~ 
~ 
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Major Funds 
Other 

General Governmental 
Fund Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 167,868 $ 42,724 
Receivables (net of allowances 
for uncollectibles) 47,577 
Due from other funds 76,710 
Restricted assets: 
Other cash deposits 87,785 

Total assets $ 303,230 $ 119,434 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 44,030 $ 76,710 
Accrued liabilities 19,109 
Due to other funds 27,963 14,300 

Total liabilities $ 91,102 $ 91,010 

Fund balance: 
Assigned $ 87,785 $ 
Unassigned 124,343 28,424 

Total fund balance $ 212,128 $ 28,424 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 303,230 $ 119,434 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 210,592 

47,577 
76,710 

87,785 

$ 422,664 

$ 120,740 
19,109 
42,263 

$ 182,112 

$ 87,785 
152,767 

$ 240,552 

$ 422,664 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

13 
STATEMENTD 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because: 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Statement C) 

Net capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 
The cost of the assets is $3,047,888, and the accumulated depreciation 
is $1,207,881. 

Deferred outflows and inflows are not financial resources or currently 
payable. 

Deferred outflows 
Deferred inflows 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental 
funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of: 
Bonds payable 
Notes payable 
Compensated absences (sick pay and vacations) 
Net pension liability 

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Statement A) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

$ 

$ 

240,552 

1,840,007 

148,872 
(402,392) 

(328,600) 
(129,527) 
(25,112) 

(1,670,189) 

(326,389) 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

14 
STATEMENT E 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Major Funds 
Other Total 

General Governmental Governmental 
Fund Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem and franchise taxes $ 361,359 $ $ 361,359 
Licenses and permits 1,757 1,757 
Intergovernmental revenues 596,672 596,672 
Charges for services 108,976 108,976 
Fines 44,610 44,610 
Interest 214 28 242 
Qther revenues and grants 140,064 140,064 

Total revenues $ 1,253,652 $ 28 $ 1,253,680 

EXPENDITURES 
General government $ 256,180 $ $ 256,180 
Public safety 469,939 469,939 
Streets 306,275 15,433 321,708 
Sanitation 124,017 124,017 
Cemetery 47,219 47,219 
Debt service: 
Principal 64,101 64,101 
Intei·est 24,096 24,096 

Total expenditures $ 1,203,630 $ 103,630 $ 1,307,260 

Revenues over (under) expenditures $ 50,022 $ (103,602) $ (53,580) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers - in $ 226,242 $ 103,602 $ 329,844 
Transfers - out (103,602) (103,602) 

Total other financing sources (uses) $ 122,640 $ 103,602 $ 226,242 

Net change in fund balances $ 172,662 $ $ 172,662 

Fund balances - beginning, as previously reported 39,466 39,466 

Prior period adustments $ $ 28,424 $ 28,424 

Fund balances beginning, as restated $ 39,466 $ 28,424 $ 67,890 

Fund balances - ending $ 212,128 $ 28,424 $ 240,552 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Amountneported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 

Net Change .in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds, Statement E 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
deprE!ciation eX}'ei1Se. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in 
lhe current period. 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences (sic_k pay and 
vacations) - are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, 
however, expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used 
(essentially, the amounts actually paid). This year, vacation and sick leave was adjusted 
to actual liability by: 

Net pension expense is reported in governmental funds as expenditures as they are paid; 
however, in the statement of activities, the net position expense is reported according to 
estimates required by GASB Statement 68. This is the amount that the pension estimate exceeds 
the pension expenses paid in the current year. 

The issuance of long-term debt (notes payable and capital leases) provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, 
however, has any effect on net assets. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the 
treatment of long-term debt. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities, Statement B 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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$ 172,662 

54,643 

58,006 

210,236 

64,101 

$ 559,648 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Current assets 
Cash 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $111,601 
Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets: 
Cash reserved for revenue bonds 
Cash reserved for construction projects 
Cash reserved for customer meter deposits 

Total restricted assets 

Fixed assets: 
Distribution systems 
Accumulated depreciation 

Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current"liabilities (payable from current assets) 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued interest payable 
Due to other funds 
Bonds and notes payable, due within one year 

Total current liabilities (payable from current assets) 

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 
Customer deposits payable 

Total current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 

Long-term liabilities 
Compensated absences 
Bonds and notes payable 

Total long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 
Debt service 
Deposits related to consh·uction projects 
Deposits for operations and maintenance 

Unrestricted 
Total net'position 

Total liabilities and net position 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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Enterprise Fund 

318,002 
318,002 

130,507 
503,080 
315,113 
948,700 

9,249,106 
(3,931,817) 
5,317,289 

6,583,991 

101,777 
]3,282 
1,791 

34,446 
74,820 

226,116 

116,419 
116,419 

26,313 
2,056,072 
2,082,385 

2,424,920 

3,186,397 

130,507 
503,080 
315,113 

23,974 
4,159,071 

6,583,991 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Enterprise Fund 
OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services: 

Water sales $ 487,908 
Sewer charges 246,515 
Gas sales 556,679 
MTC. revenues 139,798 

Total operating revenues $ 1,430,900 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services $ 355,084 
Purchase of utilities provided 242,816 
Mate1ials and supplies 100,834 
Repairs ·and maintenance 12,416 

. Depreciation 161,555 
Utilities and telephone 87,q16 
Insurance 29,689 
Other operating expenses 141,222 

Total operating expenses $ 1,131,232 

Operating income, net $ 299,668 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest earnings $ 1,486 
Other income 119,582 
Interest expense (53,498) 

Total nonoperaling revenues (expenses) $ 67,570 

Net income before contributions and transfers $ 367,238 

Capital grants and contributions 6,721 
Transfers out (226,242) 

Change in net position $ 147,717 

Total net position - beginning $ 4,011;354 

Total net position - ending $ 4,159,071 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRJ.ETARY.FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Cash. received from customers 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees for services 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows From N oncapital Financing Activities 
Uses by other expenses 
Operating transfers - out 

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Capital grants and conh·ibutions 

. Principal paid on bonds and notes 
Interest paid on bonds 
Construction of water and sewer system improvements 

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Interest on temporary investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
Operating income 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided by Operating 
Activities 

· Depreciation 
Provision for bad debts 
Change in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable 
Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Customer .deposits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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Enterprise Fund 

1,435,288 
(567,254) 
(357,490) 
510,544 

84,268 
(226,385) 
(142,117) 

6,721 
(99,864) 
(53,498) 
(28,473) 

(175,114) 

1,486 
1,486 

194,799 

753,901 

948,700 

299,668 

161,555 
3,757 

(3,900) 

47,339 
(6,163) 
8,288 

210,876 

510 544 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
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Town of Woodville, Mississippi was incorporated on March 5, 1878. Town of Woodville, Mississippi operates under 
the Mayor/Board of Aldermen form of governh1e1it and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: 
public safety (police and fire); streets; sanitation; health and social services; culture and recreation; public 
imptoVements; planning and zoning; provision .. for water, sewer~ arid gas utilities services; and general ser':'ices. 

The accouriiing and reporting policies of Town of Woodville, Mississippi conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted ii1 the United States of America, as applicable to governments. 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, The Reporting Entity, established criteria for 
determining the governineiital reporting ·entity· and 'component· units that should be included within the reporting 
entity. UJlder provisions-Of this statement, the·murticipality iS cohsidered a primary governm:ent since it is a special 
purpose govermnent that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of 
other· state or local governments. As used in· GASB Statement 14, fiscally independent means that the municipality 
may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or modify its own budget, levy its 
own tax·es·or ·set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Government~Wide and-Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) 
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the government. For the most part,' the effect of 
ili'fer-fund" activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities; which 
rely to a significant extent on fees-and charges for support. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment 
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual 
govermnental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property 
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
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B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period. Expenditures generally a:re recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related· to compensated absences and claims 
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have oee11 recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. 
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and ·available only when cash is received by the 
governn1ent. 

The municipality reports the following major governmental funds: 

The Geizeral Fund is the municipality's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required tb be ·accounted for in another fund. 

The n1unicipality reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for the provision of water, sewer, and gas utilities, as well as 
·services to Management and Training Corporation. All activities necessary to provide such services are 
accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, 
financing, and· related debt service and billing and collection. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally 
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type 
a.ctivities · and enterprisidunds, subject'to this same limitation. The government has elected notto follow 
s_ubse_quent private-sector guidance .. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and other charges between the 
government's enterprise operations. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program. revenues reported for the various functions concerned . 

. '· 
Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, 
or privileges provided; {2} operating .grants and contributions; and· (3) capital grants and contributions. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal on-going operations. Operating expenses for enterprise 
funds.include the cost of sales and services; administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When lJoth restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the municipality's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The municipality's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short-term investments (certificates of deposit) with original maturities of six months or less from the date 
of acquisition. Town of Woodville, Mississippi deposits funds in financial institutions selected by the Board 
of Aldermen in accordance with state statutes. 

There are ·various restrictions on these deposits imposed by statutes. These restrictions are summarized 
below: 

All deposits with financial institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), or any 
successors to such insurance corporations, must be collateralized in an amount equal to 105% of the 
uninsured amount. 

D. Investments 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi is allowed by statute to invest excess funds in any bonds or other direct 
obligations of the United States of America or the State of Mississippi, or of any county or municipality of 
this state when such county or municipal bonds have been properly approved; or interest-bearing time 
certificates of deposit or interest-bearing accounts with any financial institution approved for the deposit of 
state funds. Town of Woodville, Mississippi currently only invests excess funds in certificates of deposit. 

E. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (e.g., the current portion of interfund 
loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (e.g., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

E. Receivables and Payables (continued) 

All b·ade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Uncollectible 
amounts due for ad valorem taxes and customers' utility receivables are recognized through the establishment of 
an allowance account at the time information becomes available which would indicate the uncollectibility of the 
particular receivable. 

Ad valorem taxes are not considered to be available resources of the fiscal year to which they apply and are, 
therefore, not accrued at the end of the fiscal year. 

F. Inventories 

For both governmental and proprietary funds, purchase of various operating supplies are regarded as 
expenditures or expenses at the time purchased, and inventories of such supplies (if any) are not recorded as 
assets at the close of the fiscal year. For the year ending September 30, 2021, these amounts were considered to be 
immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

G. Resb'icted Assets 

H. 

Resb·icted assets (internally and externally imposed) were applicable to the following at September 30, 2021: 

General Fund Utility Fund Total 
Consumer deposits and grants $ $ 812,103 $ 812,103 
Deposits related to bonded debt 130,507 130,507 
;Fire rebate savings 9,729 9,729 
Cemetery funds 45,770 45,770 
Capital projects 6,090 6,090 
Future Growth Fund 32,214 32,214 
Sidewalk repair 72 72 

Totals $ 87.785 $ 948.700 $ 1.036.485 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which -include property, plan\, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in 
the_ government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capi_talized at historical cost, or estimated cost if 
historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their esthnated fair market value at 
the date of donation. The municipality maintains a threshold level of $5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets 
used in the governmental funds. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset 
lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as construction in progress and are depreciated 
upon completion of the project. Interest incurred during the consb·uction phase of capital assets of business-type 
activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets consb·ucted. There was no capitalized interest 
cost during the current fiscal year. 
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All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful 
~m: , . 

J2'!1i.rrlP-tion 
Govenlmental activities: 
Land improvements 
· Buildings· 
Vehicles 
Machinery and equipme~t 

Business-type activities/Enterprise Fund: 
Buildings' · 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and equipment 
Vehicles 

I. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

Estimated Lives 

20 years 
40 years 
5 years 
3 -10 years 

40 years 
20-50 years 
3 - 10 years 
5 years 

fn addition to assets, the Statement of Financial Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resocfrces, 
represe11ts a consumption of net' position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 

Deferred outflows "related to pensions $ 148,872 

In addition to HabiHties, the Statement of Financial Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separnte financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

Deferred inflows related to pensions 

See Note 12 for further details. 

J. Compensated Absences 

$ 402,392 

Vested or accumulated annual leave. that. is. expected to be Hquidated with expendable available financial 
resources is reported as an expenditure' and a fund liability of th~ governmental fund that will pay it. 
Amounts of vested or acs1pnulated annual leave that are not expected .t~ ,be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources are repotted as a 'long:term debt. No ixpJnditure is reported for these 
amounts. Vested or accumulate.cl annuaUeave of the. Enterprise Fundjs recorded as an expense and 
liability of those funds as the benefits acci·ue to employees. In a·ccordance with the provisions of GASB 
Statement 16 (GASB Cod. Sec. C60), Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for 
nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick-pay benefits. 
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In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business:type activities, or proprietary fund type ·statement of net·position. • 'Bond 
prerniums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the effective interest n1eH10d, Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related 
debt. 

In the fund financial statements; governmental fund 'types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as weli 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is· reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other ·financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

L. Pensibns 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the· fiduciary net position of the 
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/ deductions from PERS fiduciary ne·l 
position have been detei·mined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, the 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and ·payable ht 
accordance with the benefit tenns. Inves_tments are reported at fair value. 

M. Equity Classification 

Beginning with fiscal year 2015, Town of Woodville, Mississippi implemented the provisions of GASB 
Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position. GASB Statement 63 provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows and deferred 
inflows of resources as a consumption of net position applicable to a future reporting period and an 
acquisition of net position applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. 

Furthermore, GASB Statement. 63 requires equity to be classified as net position and displayed in three 
components: (1) net investment in capital assets-consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are 
athibutable to the acquisition, conshuction, or improvement of those assets; (2) reshicted net 
position-consists of net position with conshaints placed on the use either by (a) external groups such as 
creditors, granters, conhibutions, _or _laws _or regulations of other governments, or (b) law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation; and (3) unrestricted net position- all other net position 
that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net inves.tment in capital assets." 

. . . '.· . . ' . . 

The government-wide Statement of Net Position _reports _$948,_700 of rest:r.icted net position, all of which is 
restricted by enabling legislation. 
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Beginning with fiscal year 2012, Town of Woodville, Mississippi implemented GASB Statement 54, Fund 
Bnlmzce Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This Statement provides ·more clearly defined 
fund balance categories to make the nature and-extent of the constraints placed• on a government's fm1d 
balance more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending 
constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 

• Nonspendable Fund Balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or are 
required to be maintained intact; 

• Restricted Fund Bnlnnce - amounts constrained to -specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors; 
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional ·provisions, or by enabli1ig 
legislation; 

• ·Committed Fund Balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its 
highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for 
any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to remove cir change 'the 
cmistraint; 

• Assigned Fund Balmzce - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be 
expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the 
authority; 

• Unassigned Fund Balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are reported 
only in the general fund. 

The Board of Aldermen establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of an 
ordinance or resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund 
ba_lance commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the 
fund (such as for special incentives). Assigned fund balance is established by the Board of Alderme11 
through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purposes (such as the purchase of 
fixed assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes). 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned, _and unassigned. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the 
government-wide statements. · 
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity' with accounting principles' generally accepted iri:the 
United States of America requires managemei1t to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amimnts'of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi follows these procedures establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

l. Prior to September 1, the Town Clerk prepares a proposed operating budget and submits •itto the Mayor 
and Board cif Aldermen for the fiscal year commencing October 1. 

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the proposed budget is 
available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called. 

3.· A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at Town Hall to obtain taxpayer comments. 

4. The budget, as submitted, is reviewed by the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen. Necessary revisions are 
made. The.budget is approved prior to September 15. 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program, or function to 
another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated 
require the approval of the Board of Aldermen. The budget is revised as necessary during the year. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds, if any, are adopted on a basis consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY TAX 

Real and personal property taxes attach as an enforceable lien bn property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes 
are levied in September and payable on or before February 1. These taxes and public utilities tax are collected 
by Town of Woodville, Mississippi. Auto :ancfmobile home prop·erty taxes are collected and remitted to Town 
of Woodville, Mississippi by the county.tax. collector .. The millage rate for Town of Woodville, Mississippi for 
January through December 2021, was"55.62 mills, broken down as follows: 

General Fund 55.62 mills 
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Restrictions ~ssociated with property tax levies are established by state law which pr01ddes that the tad.evy for 
genera!'purposes shallproduce no more than 110% of.the amom1t which resulted from· those levies' assessme11ts 
of the previous year. · 

T°he Ge1\eral Fund tax levy did not result in collections in excess of the 110% limit in the current yeai'. Excess 
tunds from the prior year were considered in establishing the·millage for the current yeai·. 

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES 

Receivables as of year-end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

General Enter12rise Total 
Receivables: 
Customer accounts $ 22,363 $ 291,875 $ 314,238 
Due from other governments 21,466 21,466 
Due from other agencies 15424 137 728 153152 

Gross receivables $ 59,253 $ 429,603 $ 488,856 
· Less allowance for uncollectibles (11,676) (111,601) (123,277) 

Net total receivables $ 47,577 $ 318,002 $ 365,579 

Uncollectible amounts due for customers' utility receivables are recognized as bad debts through the 
establishment of an allowance account at the time information becomes available which would indicate the 
uncollectibility of the receivable. 

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

The following is a summary of due from/ to other funds: 

Due From Due To 
General fund $ $ 27,963 
Enterprise fund 34,447 
Special revenue fund: 
Moc_iernizatiOn use tax 14,300 
Agency funds: 
Payroll clearing 31,574 
Accounts payable clearing 45136 

Total all funds $ 76,710 $ 76,710 
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Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, is as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance 

9/30/2020 Increases Decreases 
Governmental Activities 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 424,757 $ $ 
Total capital assets, not being 

depreciated $ 424,757 $ $ 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings $ 1,209,447 $ $ 
Machinery and equipment 224,627 17,688 
Vehicles 512,732 57,566 
Other improvements 553,082 47,989 

Total capital assets being depreciated $ 2,499,888 $ 123,243 $ 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings $ (215,016) $ (24,064) $ 
Machinery and equipment (194,439) (9,807) 
Vehicles (442,779) (4,676) 
Other improvements (287,047) (30,053) 

Total accumulated depreciation $ (1,139,281) $ (68,600) $ 
Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net $ 1,360,607 $ 54,643 $ 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 1,785,364 $ 54,643 $ 

Business-Ty:ee Activities 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress $ 2,214,301 $ 28,473 $ 
Total capital assets, not being 

depreciated $ 2,214,301 $ 28,473 $ 

Capi.tal assets being depreciated: 
Distribution systems $ 6,745,672 $ $ 
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 260,660 

Total capital assets being depreciated $ 7,006,332 $ $ 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Distribution systems $ {3,535,838) $ (145,278) $ 
Machinery, equip~1ent, and vehicles (234,424) (16,277) 

Total accumulated depreciation $ (3,770,262) $ (161,555) $ 
Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net $ 3,236,070 $ (161,555) $ 

Busines~-type activities capital assets, net $ 5,450,371 $ (133,082) $ 

28 

Ending 
Balance 

9/30/202i 

$ 424,757 

$ 424,757 

$ 1,209,447 
242,315 
570,298 
601,071 

$ 2,623,131 

$ (239,080) 
(204,246) 
(447,455) 
(317,100) 

$ (1,207,881) 

$ 1,415,250 

$ 1,840,007 

$ 2,242,774 

$ 2,242,774 

$ 6,745,672 
260,660 

$ 7,006,332 

$ (3,681,116) 
. (250,701) 

$ (3,931,817) 

$ 3,074,515 

$ 5,317,289 
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Depreciation expense for the year ended September 30, 2021, was charged to the following· governinehtal 
functions: · 

General government 
Public safety 
Streets 
Cemetery 

Total 

NOTE 7- CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS· 

$ 

$ 

3,336 
32,528 
31,303 
1433 

68.600 

The municipality has active construction projects as of September 30, 2021. At year end, the commitments with 
contractors are as follows: 

Pro'ect 
RUS Loan - Water System Project 

NOTE 8 - INTERFUNDTRANSFERS 

Spent 
To Date 

$ 2,242,774 

Interfund h·ansfers during the year ended September 30, 2021, were as follows: 

Remaining 
Commitment 

$ 

• $226,242 was transferred from the Enterprise Fund to the General Fund to cover expenses of general 
operations. 

• $88,197 was transferred from the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund to cover principal and interest 
payments due. 

NQTf: 9 ~ AC:::COUNTS, SALARIES, AND OTHER PAYABLES 

The payables at September 30, 2021, are as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Accounts payable - trade $ 120,740 
Accrued salaries, wages, and payrolllaxes· 19,109 . 
Other accrued liabilities 

Totals $ 139.849 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

$ 101,777 $ 222,517 
13,282 32,391 

1 791 1 791 

$ 116.850 $ 256.699 
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Enterprise 
General Obligation Fund 

Bond, Notes, 
Bonds Capital Leases 

_____l:m, ab le Notes Payable Totals Payable 

Balances, September 30, 2020 $ 378,500 $ 143,728 $ 522,228 $ 2,230,756 

Additions 

Reductions /49,900) /14,201) (64,101) (99,864) 

Balances, September 30, 2021 $ 328,600 $ 129,527 $ 458,127 $ · 2,130,892 

Less: current portion (49,900) (14,201) (64,101) /74,820) 

Long-term portion $ 278,700 $ 115,326 $ 394,026 $ 2,056,072 

Long-term debt as of September 30, 2021, is comprised of the following: 

General Obligation 

General obligation bonds payable to finance a portion of the new municipal building 
in the amount of $460,500, dated February 6, 2008, payable in annual installments of 
principal and interest commencing on February 6, 2009, and maturing 
February 6, 2028, with an interest rate of 4.375%. 

General obligation note payable to Concordia Bank & Trust to finance a portion of 
the new municipal building in the amount of $222,884, dated October 24, 2013, 
payable in monthly installments of principal and interest in the amount of $1,706.05 
and maturing on December 24, 2023, with an interest rate of 4.99%. 

2010 General Obligation Street Bonds payable to finance street improvements in the 
amount of $325,000, dated July 6, 2010, payable in annual installments of principal 
and interest commencing on August 1, 2011, and maturing August 1, 2025, with an 
interest rate of 5%. 

Total general obligation 

Less: current portion 

Long-Term Portion 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

30 

Totals 

2,752,984 

(163,965) 

2,589,019 

/138,921) 

2,45Jl,Q98 

208,600 

129,527 

120 000 

458,127 

(64,101) 
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Enterprise Fund 

USDA to finance the.construction of water·iiystem improvements in the amoul"it of 
$1,451,341, dated Decerilber il, 2019, and payable thereafter in installments of 
principal an'd.intei·est in the amount of $62,920; maturing on December 11, 2053. 

Combined Water and Sewer Bond payable to finance the construction of water and 
sewer system in1pr6vements in the amount of $715,600, dated November 14, 2001, 
with interest only on November 14, 2002 and November 14, 2003, and payable 
thereaftei' in am\ual li1stallments of principal and interest in the amount of $42,041, 
maturing on November 14, 2036, with an interest rate of 4.5%. 

Note payable to Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality to finance the 
cohstructibn 'artd improvement of the MTC's wastewater system to comply with the 
enforceable· requirements of the Clean Water Act, dated January 29, 2013, payable in 
monthly installments of $1,124.68, with an interest rate of 1.75% and maturing 
December 2032. · 

Note payable to Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality to finance the · 
construction and improvement of Town of Woodville, Mississippi's wastewater 
system to comply with the enforceable requirements of the Clean Water Act, dated 
May 2015, payable in monthly installments of $1,061.81, with an interest rate of 1.75% 
and maturing March 2033. · 

·Total.enterprise fund 

·Less: current portion. 

Long-term portion 

$ 

$ 

$ 

31 

1,397,870 

462,653 

137,729 

132 640 

2,130,892 

(74;820) 

2,056,072 

The annual requirements to amortize all outstanding debt as of September 30, 2021, including interest payments 
are as follows: 

Fiscal General Obligation Entergrise Fund 

Year Ending Bonds 1 Notes Paxablei and Leases Bonds and Notes Pa)'able 
Se1:1tember 30 Princigal Interest Princigal Interest Totals 

2022 $ 64,101 20,887 74,820 56,908 216,716 
2023 67,888 17,737 76,371 54,835 216,831 
2024 154,700 11,237 78,514 52,691 297,142 
2025 64,700 7,306 80,727 50,478 203,211 
2026 31,000 4,257 83,858 47,621 166,736 

2027-2031 75,738 · 4,384 455,192 200,837 736,151 
2032-2036 427,255. 133,568 560,823 
2037-2041 854155. 16 885 871 040 

Totals $ 458,127 $ 65,808 $ 2,130,892 $ 613,823 $ 3,268,650 
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Retirement of general obligation debt is to be made by annual transfers of General Fund revenue in the amounts 
necessary to· retire principal and interest currently due. There are a number of li111itations and restrictions contained· in 
the various bond indentures. To\Vn Of Wooctv·me, Mississippi is in coinpliance with all significant limitatio"ns· and 
restrictions. The following is a schedule of limitations of the indebtedness of Town of Woodville, Mississip.pi at 
September 30, 2021: 

Assessed valuation for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021 
Percent limitation 
Authorized debt limit 
Present debt service to 15% limitation 
· Margin for adclitiMal debt 

$ 

$ 

$ 

7,157,296 
15% 

1,073,594 
328 600 
744,994 

The related ·capital costs incurred to date are properly included in the repair and maintenance accounts for MTC-relatecl 
projects and capital asset accounts for Town of Woodville, Mississippi's project when necessary in the fixed asset footnote 
a:bove. 

NOTE 11 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Plt111 Description ° Town of Woodville, Mississippi contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi 
(PERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined, benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability 
benefits, a1mual ·cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are 
established by state law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That information 
may be obtained by writing to Public Employees' Retirement System; PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, 
Mississippi 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS. 

Funding Policy -· PERS members are required to conh'ibute 9% of their annual covered salary, and Town of Woodville, 
Mississippi is required to conh·ibute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer contribution rate is 17.40% for the 
current fiscal year for annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of PERS members are established and may 
be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. · 

Be1iefits Provided - Membership in PERS is a condition of employment granted upon hiring for qualifying employees and 
officials of the State of Mississippi, state universities, community and junior colleges, and teachers and employees of the 
public school districts. For those persons employed by political subdivisions and instrumentalities of the State of 
Mississippi, membership is contingent upon approval of the entity's participation in PERS by the PERS Board of Trustees. 
If approved, membership for the entity's employees is a condition of employment, and eligibility is granted to those who 
qualify upon hiring, ·Participating members who are vested and retire at or after age 60 or those who retire regardless of 
age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years of creditable service for employees who became members of PERS 
before July 1, 2011) are entitled, upon application, to an annual retirement allowance payable monthly for life in an 
amount equal to 2% of their average compensation for each year of creditable service up to and including 30 years. (25 
years for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), plus 2.5% for each additional year of creditable service 
with.an actuarial reduction in the benefit .ror _ea~µ_ year q.f credita~le service bel_ow 30 years or the number of years in age 
that the member is below 65, whichever i,i' iess. Av·erage corripensatiori is the ai;erage of the employee's earnings during 
the four highest compensated years of creditable service .. Benefits vest upon completion of eight years of membership 
service· (four years of membership· s·ervice for: thos·e who became members o·f .PERS before July 1, 2007). PERS also 
provides certain death and disability benefits. A Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) payment is made to eligible retirees 
and beneficiaries. The COLA is equal 'to·3%'of the annual retirement allowance for·each full fiscal year of retirement up 
to the year in which the retired member reaches age 60 (55 for those ·who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), 
with 3% compounded for each fiscal year thereafter. Plan provisions are established and may be amended only by the 
State of Mississippi Legisla\ur:' ... 
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Contributions - PERS members are required to confribute 9% of their annual co'(ered salary, and Town of 
\t\looclvilie; Mississippi is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. · The employer's. rate as of 
September 30, 2021, was 17.40% of anmial covered payroll. The coritributiori requirements of PERS. meinbers 
a11cl emj,loyei·s are established and lilay be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. Town of 
Woodville, Mississippi's contributions to PERS for the years ending September 30, 2021, 2020, an.d 2019, were 
$130,606, $132,899, and $132,946, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, Related.to Pensibns 

At September 30, 2021; Town of Woodville, Mississippi reported a liability of $1,670,189 for its proportionate 
. share of'the net pension liability. ·The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total 
pensiori liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date.· Town of Woodville, Mississippi's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
Town ·of Woodville, Mississippi's· long-term· share of contribution to the pension plan relative to projected 
contributions of ail· pa!'ticipating entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, Town of Woodville, 
Mississippi's proportion was 0.0113%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, Town of Woodvilie, Mississippi recognized pension expense of $23,068. At 
September 30, 2021, Town o(Woodville, Mississippi reported deferred outflows of resources arid deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: · · 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 
Chai,ges of assumptions 
Changes in proportion and differences between the 
Town's contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 19,823 

95,396 

33 653 
$ 148,872 

$ 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

402,392 

$ 402.392 .. 

$33,653 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town of Woodville, 
Mississippi's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction to the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: · 

Year ended June 30: 
2022 $ 
2023 $ 
2024 $ 
2025 $ 
2026 $ 
Thereafter' · · $ 

. {60,591) · 
(60,591) 

(165,990) 
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Pe'iisidn 'Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources· and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using 
the followihg actuar'ial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

· Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

2.40% 

2.65 - 17.90%, including inflation 

7.55%, net cif pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

Mcfrfality .rates were based on the Pub S.H-2010(B) Retiree Table with the following adjustments: 

For males, 95% of male rates up to age 60, 110% for ages 61 to 75 and 101 % for ages above 77. For females, 84% 
of female rates up to age 72 and 100% for ages above 76. Mortality rates for disability retirees were based on the 
PubG.H-2010 Disabled Table adjusted 134% for males and 121 % for females. Mortality rates for Contingent 
Annuitants were based on the PubS.H-2010(B) Contingent Annuitant Table, adjusted 97% for males and 110% 
for females. Mortality rates will be projected generationally using the MP-2020 projection scale to account for 
future improvements in life expectancy. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were 
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2020. The experience 
report is dated April 20, 2021. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a long-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected nominal 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed for each major 
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 
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Pen,sion Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and; Deferred Inflpws .of 
Res,ourc.es Rel.ated to Pensions ( continued) . 

Asset Class 

Domestic equity 
International equity 
Glpbal equity 
Fixed incqme 

, Real e~tate 
Private equity 
Cash equivalents 

Total 

Target Allocation 

.27% 
22% 
12% 
20% 
10% 
8% 
1% 

100% 

'. 

Long,'I'erm Expected Real· 
Rate of Return 

.4,60% 
4.50% 

·. 4,8Q% 
(Q.25}% 
3.75% 
6.00% 

(1,00)% 

biscouut Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.55%. The projection of cash 
flows used·to determine the discount rate assumed·that plan member contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between 
actuarially determined contribution tates'and the meinber rate. Based on those assumptio1is, the pensi01i.plan's 
fiduciary rtefpositio11 was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current 
plan, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Seusitivity To Chauges In the Discount Rate - The ·following presents Town of Woodville, Mississippi's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.55%, as well as what 
Town of Woodville, Mississippi's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.55%) or 1-percentage··point higher (8.55%) than the 
current rate: 

Town's proportionate share of· 
the net pension liability $ 

1% Decrease 
(6.75%) 

2,365,380 $ 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.75%) 

1,670,189 $ 

1 % Increase 
(8.75%) 

1,097,297 

Pension Plan Fiducian; Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued PERS financial report. 
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NOTE 12 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 

Intergovernmental revenues for the year end.ed September 30, 2021, consiste.d _of the following: 

General Enterprise 
Fund Fund 

State 
Sales tax allocation $ 329,152 $ 
.Pti ynieti t in lieu of taxes 14,511 
General mut11dpal aid 547 
Gasoline tax ' . 3,357 

• Uquo'r privilege tax 900 
Homestead exemption reimbursement 

.. 
10,833 

Other aid and grants 237 372 

Total intergovernmental revenues $ 596,672 -

NOTE 13 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUND 
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Totals 

$ 329,152 
14,511 

547 
·3,357 

900 
10,833 

237 372 

$ 596,6'72 

The Enterprise Fund operated by Town of Woodville, Mississippi provides water, sewer, and gas utility 
services. The following is a summary of disclosures required by the National Council on Govemmental Acconnting 
ill Interpretation 2, Segment Information for Enterprise Funds: 

Operating revenues 
Operating expenses 
Purchase of utilities 
Capital grants 
Depreciation 

Operating income 

Interest income 
Other revenues 
Grant teveriu~ 
Interest expense 
Operating transfers, net 

Change in net position 

Water 
$ 487,906 

(266,227) 

(60,362) 

L_ 1_61,317 

Sewer 
$ 246,515 $ 

(85,053) 

$ 10,758 i. 

Gas MTC 
556,680 $ 139,799 

(246,396) (63,534) 
(242,816) 

(12,517) (3,623) 

54 951 $ 72.642 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 
1,430,900 
(732,861) 
(242,816) 

(161,555) 

299 668 

1,486 
112,582 

6,721 
(53,498) 

(226,242) 

147,717 •. 
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NOTE 14-ACCUMULATED UNPAID ANNUAL LEAVE AND SICK PAY 
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Em
1
plo};~es of Town of Woodville, M·ississippi earn annual and sick leave as designated in the personnel policies 

adopted by Town of Woodville, Mississippi. Town of Woodville, Mississippi is responsible for up to 15 days of 
ani1ual leave for ,each employee depending on years of co'nti1iuous service. Town of Woodvme·, Mississipp'i is 
responsible for up to 12 days of sick leave pel' year for each employee depen,ding on years 6fcdntinuous service. 
Therids no maximum on the acc.umulation of sick leav·e. Al!' unused major medicaJ'!eave shali'be cret!'itabl6 
service-for the purpose of retirement. Up.on tel'mination of employment, each employee shall be paid for ·no't 
1i10,:e than 30 days of accumulated sick leave. 

NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

T'own :of Woodville, Mississippi is exposed tci various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,' damage lo, and 
deshuti:ioti. of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disaster. Town of WoodvilJe, 
Mississippi carries commercial insurance for these risks. Settled claims resulting from these insured risks have 
not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Amounts received or receivable frorn grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, 
pi'incipally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may 
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by 
the grantor, cannot be determined at this time, although Town of Woodville, Mississippi expects such amounts, 
if any, to be immaterial. 

NOTE 17 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

During the fiscal year, the Town made the following prior period adjustment to the government-wide and fund 
fina.ncicll statements: 

1. Correct prior year adjustment. 

Net position at September 30, 2020, as previously reported 
Correct prior year adjustment to receivable from component unit 
Net position at September 30, 2021, as restated 

i: 

Government-wide 
Statement of Activities 

$ 3,096,893 
28424 

$ 3,125.317 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPP.I 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

REV.ENUES 
Ad valorem and franchise taxes $ 363,253 $ 363,253 
License~ and permits 3,500 3,500 
Intergovernmental 544,600 544,600 
S:harges for services 118,550 118,550 
FiI\es 80,000 80,000 
Interest 250 250 
Miscellaneous 20,000 20,000 

Total revenues $ 1,130,153 $ 1,130,153 

EXPENDITURES 
General government $ 267,848 $ 267,848 

. Public safety: 
Police and court 471,648 471,648 
Fire 45,510 45,510 

Streets 303,660 303,660 
Sanitation 103,550 103,550 
Cemetery 58,437 58,437 

Total expenditures $ 1,250,653 $ 1,250,653 

Revenues over (under) expenditures $ (120,500) $ (120,500) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers - in $ 120,500 $ 191,000 
Operating transfers - out 

Total other financing sources (uses) $ 120,500 $ 191,000 

Excess revenues and other sources 
under expenditures and other uses $ $ 70,500 

Fund balance - beginning of year 131,321 99,489 

Fund balance - end of year $ 131,321 $ 169,989 

See Independent Auditor's Report, 
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Variance With 
Final Budget .. 

Positive 
Actual (Negative) 

$ 361,359 $ (1,894) 
.1,757 (1,743) 

596,672 52,072 
108,976 (9,574) 

44,610 (35,390) 
214 (36) 

140,064 120,064' 
$ 1,253,652 $ 123,499 

$ 256,180 $ 11,668 

452,342 19,306 
17,597 2?,913 

306,275 (2,615) 
124,017 (20,467) 

47,219 11,218 
$ 1,203,630 $ 47,023 

$ 50,022 $ 170,522 

$ 226,242 $ 35,242 
(103,602) (103,602) 

$ 122,640 $ (68,360) 

$ 172,662 $ 102,162 

39,466 

$ 212,128 $ 102,162 



PERS: 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI '' 

SCHEDULE OF TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI'S PROPORTIONATE 
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021' 

2021 2020 2019 ?018 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's proportion of the 
net pension liability (asset) 0.011% 0.012% 0.012% 0.013%. 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability (asset) $ 1,679,189 $ 2,264,984 $ 2,198,997 $ 2,095,754 $ 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's covered-employee payroll $ 756,467 $ 763,787 $ 822,505 $ 799,990 $ 

Town of Woodville, Mississippi's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its 
covered-employee payroll 221% 297% 267% 262% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the' total pension liability 70% 59% 62% 63% 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of June 30 of the year prior- to the fiscal year presented. 

2017 2016 

0.012% 0.012% 

2,061;301 $ 2;189,763 

787,529$ 784,216 

262% 279% 

61% 62% 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for .10 years. However, GASB 68 was implemented in FYE June 30, 2015, and, until a full 10-year. trend ·is compiled, To,vn 
of Woodville, Mississippi has only presented information for the years which information is available. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. "' '° 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

2021 2020 2019 
PERS: 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

Conb·actually required contribution $ 130;606 $ 132,899 $ 132,946 $ 

Conhibution in relation to the contractually required contribution (130,606) (132,899} (132,946) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $_ 

Town ·df Woodville, Mississippi's covered-employee payroll $ 756,467 $ 763,787· $ 822,505 $ 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 17.27% 17.40% 16.16% 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of June 30 of the year prior to the fiscal year presented. 

2018 2017 2016 

125,998 $ 124,036 $ 123,514 

(125,998) (124,036) (123,514) 

i 

799,990 $ 787,529 $ 784,216 

15.75% 15.75% 15.75% 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, GASB 68·was implemented in FYEJune 30, 2015, and, until a.full 10-)•ear trend is compiled, Town 
of Woodville, Mississippi has only presented information for the years which information is available. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. "'" 0 
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TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Special 
Fiduciarl:'. Funds Revenue Funds 

Accounts Payable Total 
and Credit Card Payroll Nonmajor 

Clearing Clearing Modernization Governmental 
Fund Fund Total Use Tax Fund Funds 

ASSETS · 
Cash and cash equivalents $ $ $ $ 42,724 $ 42,724 • 
Due from other funds 45,146 31,564 76,710 76,710 

Total assets $ 45,146 $ 31,564 $ 76,710 $ 42,724 $ 119,434 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 45,146 $ 31,564 $ 76,710 $ $ 76,710 
Due to other funds 14,300 14,300 

Total liabilities $ 45,146 $ 31,564 $ 76,710 $ 14,300 $ 91,010 

Fund balances: 
Total fund balances $ $ $ $ 28,424 $ 28,424 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances $ 45,146 $ 31,564 $ 76,710 $ 42,724 $ 119,434 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Debt Service 
Fund 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 

Total revenues $ 

EXPENDITURES 
Principal $ 64,101 
Interest 24,096 

Total expenditures $ 88,197 

Revenues under expenditures $ (88,197) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Operating transfers - in $ 88,197 

Total other financing sources $ 88,197 

Excess revenues and other sources over expenditures $ 

Fund balance - beginning of year 

Fund balance - end of year $ 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

$ 

$ 

$ 64,101 
24,096 

$ 88,197 

$ (88,197) 

$ 88,197 

$ 88,197 

$ 

$ 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE RECONCILING ORIGINAL AD VALOREM TAX ROLLS TO 
FUND COLLECTIONS ON 2020 ADV ALO REM TAXES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Assessed valuation 
Real property 
Personal property 
Auto and mobile home 
Public utilities 

Total at 55.62 mills 

Less: Homestead credit allowed 
Add: Actual homestead reimbursement 

Total to be accounted for 

Credits 
Collection allocated to: 
General Fund 

Balance represented by 
Unpaid real and personal property taxes 

Total accounted for 

Taxes 

$ 307,576 

Assessed 
Value 

$ 3,963,709 
560,682 
75,762 

393,701 

$ 4,993,854 

Homestead 
Reimbursement 

$ 10,834 
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Tax 

$ 220,461° 
31,185 
60,595 
21,898 

$ 334,139 

(19,123) 
10,834 

$ 325,850 

Totals 

$ 318,410 

7,440 

$ 325,850 

Note: Ad valorem taxes on automobiles and mobile homes are collected and remitted by the Wilkinson County 
Tax Collector. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 



General Fund 

Restricted Funds 

Concordia Bank & Trust: 
Savings and Checking Accounts: 
Cemetery fund 
Fire rebate funds 
Sidewalk repair 
Future growth fund 

Total general fund resb·icted 
investments 

Enterprise Fund 

Restricted Funds 

Concordia Bank & Trust: 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS - ALL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Principal 
Rate Balance 

0.10% $ 45,770 
0.10% 9,729 
0.10% 72 
0.10% 32,214 

$ 87,785 

Certificates of Deposit and Checking Accounts: 
Water and Sewer System 0.10% $ 34,234 
Operating Cash - Reserved For Deposits 0.10% 677,438 
Water Improvement and Capital Projects 0.10% 124 
CCA Reserve 0.10% 5,965 
CDBG Fund 0.10% 100,431 
Bond Cushion Fund 0.10% 45,116 
Contingent Fund 0.10% 22,508 
Depredation Fund 0.10% 22,558 
Bond and Interest-Sinking Fund 0.10% 40,326 

Total enterprise fund restricted $ 948,700 
investments 

Total investments - all funds $ 1,036,485 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Fair 
Carrying Market 

Value Value 

$ 45,770 $ 45,770 
9,729 9,729 

72 72 
32,214 32,214 

$ 87,785 $ 87,785 

$ 34,234 $ 34,234 
677,438 677,438 

124 124 
5,965 5,965 

100,431 100,431 
45,116 45,116 
22,508 22,508 
22,558 22,558 
40,326 40,326 

$ 948,700 $ 948,700 

$ 1,036,485 $ 1,036,485 



Name 

Keshia Stewart Ford 

Russell Fry 

Earl-Dean Anthony 

William Carter 

Megan Tolliver 

Pawlawski D. Adams 

Elnora Veals 

Tarwonna Walker 

Jessie Stewart 

TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS FOR MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Position Insurance Company 

Mayor Travelers Casualty & Surety 

Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety 

Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety 

Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety 

Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety 

Town Clerk Western Surety Company 

Deputy Clerk Old Republic Surety Company 

Deputy Clerk Old Republic Surety Company 

Chief of Police Old Republic Surety Company 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Amount 

$ 50,000 

$ 25,000 

$ 25,000 

$ 25,000 

$ 25,000 

$ 50,000 

$ 50,000 

$ 50,000 

$ 50,000 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Balance 
Outstanding Transactions During Year 
1001'.2020 Issued Redeemed 

General Obligation Bonds 

Governmental Funds: 
2010 street bonds $ 145,000 $ $ 25,000 
Municipal building 233,500 24,900 

Total general obligation bonds $ 378,500 $ $ 49,900 

Revenue Bonds 

Enterprise Fund: 
Combined water and sewer bonds $ 483,373 $ $ 20,720 

Notes Payable 

Governmental Funds: 
Municipal multi-purpose building $ 143,728 $ $ 14,201 

Total governmental funds notes payable $ 143,728 $ $ 14,201 

Enterprise Fund: 
MDEQ-MTC $ 148,711 $ $ 10,982 
MDEQ-Town 142,962 10,322 
USDA - water system improvement 1,451,341 53,471 

Total enterprise fund notes payable $ 1,743,014 $ $ 74,775 

Total bond and notes payable $ 2,748,615 $ $ 159,596 

Other Long-Term Debt 

Governmental Funds: 
Compensated absences $ 83,118 $ $ 58,006 

Enterprise Fund: 
Capital lease - backhoe 4,369 4,369 
Compensated absences 32,476 6,163 

Total other long-term debt $ 119,963 $ $ 68,538 

Total long-term debt $ 2,868,578 $ $ 228,134 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 

Balance 
Outstanding 
9 oo I'. 2021 

$ 120,000 
208,600 

$ 328,600 

$ 462,653 

$ 129,527 

$ 129,527 

$ 137,729 
132,640 

1,397,870 

$ 1,668,239 

$ 2,589,019 

$ 25,112 

26,313 

$ 51,425 

$ 2,640,444 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

1. Basis of Presentation · 

47 

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents the original legally adopted budget, the final legally adopted 
budget, the actual data on the GAAP basis, and variances between the final budget and the actual data. 

2. Budget Amendments and Revisions 

The budget is adopted by the Board of Aldermen. Amendments can be made on the approval of the Board 
of Aldermen. A budgetary comparison is presented for the General Fund consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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209 N. Commerce St. 
Natchez, MS 39120 
P. 0. Box 1027 
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2120 Forsythe Ave. 
Monroe, LA 71201 

P. 0. Box 4550 
Monroe, LA 71211 
Tel: 318-323-4481 

Fax: 318-323-2188 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS an'J ADVISORS 

www.silassimmons.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
Town of Woodville, Mississippi 
Woodville, Mississippi 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Town of Woodville, Mississippi as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise Town of Woodville, Mississippi's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Town of Woodville, 
Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Woodville, 
Mississippi's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of 
Woodville, Mississippi's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 
We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings to be a material 
weakness: 2021-01. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Members: American Institute of CPAs, Mississippi Society of CPAs, Louisiana Society of CPAs 



Compliance and 'Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Woodville, Mississippi's fo1ancial 
statenients are free from material misstatemen·t, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and materiaJ.effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinim.i' on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other 
matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards: 2021-2, 

Town·ofWoodville, Mississippi's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires us to perform limited procedures on the Town of Woodville, 
Mississippi's response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings, Town of Woodville, Mississippi's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal conb·ol and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose, 

Natchez, Mississippi 
January 31, 2023 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

SECTION 1: SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Fihancial Statements: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Type of auditor's report issued on the basic 
financial statements: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
a. Material weakness(es) identified? 
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not 

· considered to be material weaknesses? 

Material noncompliance relating to the basic 
financial statements? 

SECTION 2: FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

Deficiencies Considered to be Material Weaknesses or Material Noncompliance 

2021-1 Segregation of Duties (Internal Control Finding) 
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Unmodified 

Yes 

No 

Yes 

Condition: During our audit, we noted Town of Woodville, Mississippi does not have an adequate 
number of personnel to properly segregate duties within the initiation, authorization, 
reconciliation, and review functions. 

Criteria: It is recommended that no one person should have access to two or more of the cycles 
above. 

Cause of Condition: Town of Woodville, Mississippi does not have the financial resources to employ the 
number of individuals needed to properly segregate duties. 

Effect of Condition: Material weakness in internal controls. 

Recommendation: We do not believe that ii would be cost effective for Town of Woodville, Mississippi to 
hire the additional staff required lo resolve this problem. We recommend that 
management continue to implement alternate procedures to help alleviate this 
condition. Also, we believe that the Board should be diligent in approving transactions 
and reviewing monthly financial information. 

Response: Management will continue to implement alternate control procedures whenever feasible. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
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SECTION 2: FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (continued) 

Deficiencies Considered lo be Material Weaknesses or Material Noncompliance (continued) 

2021-2 
Condition: 

Criteria: 

Cause of Condition: 

Effect of Condition: 

Recommendation: 

Response: 

Financial Statement Submission to State Auditor 
The Town's audited financial statements were not completed and submitted to the 
Mississippi State Auditor's office by the statutory date of September 30, 2022. 

To be considered in good standing with the Mississippi State Auditor, the audited 
financial statements should be completed and submitted to their office by the end of the 
next fiscal year. 

Due to employee turnover, the Town's management found it difficult to prepare the 
books in time for the external auditors. 

Material noncompliance relating to the financial statements. 

We recommend that management is diligent in performing monthly and year-end close 
responsibilities and getting the books to the external auditors earlier in the next year. 

Management is aware of this and is working on getting the books to the auditors earlier 
in the future. 



TOWN OF WOODVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
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SECTION 2: FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (continued) 

Deficiencies Considered to be Material Weaknesses (continued) 

2020-01 Finding 

2020-2 

Controls surrounding accounting duties should be strengthened. Segregation of duties is normally a 
part of the control activities implemented by the entity to mitigate risks. In general, one individual 
should not control two or more phases of a transaction or operation. In addition, the following 
primary-duties should be segregated: 

• Authorization or approval 
• Custody of assets 
• Recording of transactions 
• Reconciliations 

As in prior year audit reports, it was noted that Town of Woodville, Mississippi does not have 
adequate staff to properly segregate duties. This causes a weakness in internal contrnls that could 
allow for misstatements in the financial information of the entity that are undetected by management. 

Recommendation 
In instances when proper segregation of duties cannot be achieved (e.g., number of personnel, 
specialized knowledge, etc.), that decision should be documented by the entity and compensating 
controls designed and implemented by management to mitigate the documented risks involved. 

Response 
Management will continue to implement alternative control procedures whenever feasible. This is a 
repeat finding (see 2019-01 ). 

Finding 
The Town's audited financial statements were not completed and submitted to the Mississippi State 
Auditor's office by the statutory date of September 30, 2022. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management is diligent in performing monthly and year-end close responsibilities 
and ge.t(ing the books to the external auditors earlier in the next year. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
Town of Woodville, Mississippi 
Woodville, Mississippi 

We have audited the basic financial statements of Town of Woodville, Mississippi as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2023. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we 
have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit 
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards as Finding 2021-2. 

This report is intended for the information of Town of Woodville, Mississippi's management, the Office 
of the State Auditor, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be, 
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of 
public record and its distribution is not limited. 

January 31, 2023 
Natchez, Mississippi 

Members: American Institute of CPAs, Mississippi Society of CPAs, Louisiana Society of CPAs 




